
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Human Resources Committee 

on Tuesday, 11 February 2020, at 3.00 p.m., or on the rising of 
the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel, 

whichever is the later 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 

 

Committee Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Pat Bell 

Roger Bingham 

Philip Dixon 

Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 

Dave Khan 

Brian Rendell 

Matt Severn 

Janet Willis (Vice-Chairman) 

Mark Wilson 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Friday, 31 January 2020 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Una Bell 

 

Telephone: 01539 793248 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 8 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 26 November 2019. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items in Part II of the Agenda should be considered in 
the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/2021  9 - 24 

 To consider the draft Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 prior to consideration by 
Full Council. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)  

 

6  JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL  
 
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 

contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour 
relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and 
employees of, or office holders under the authority.  
 

25 - 28 

 To receive the notes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 12 
November 2019. 

 



7  HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE  
 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  

 

29 - 44 

 To receive the minutes of the meetings of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Committee held on 5 November 2019 and 14 January 2020. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



5 
26.11.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Human Resources Committee held in the 
District Council Chamber - South Lakeland House, on Tuesday, 26 November 2019, at 
3.00 p.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

 Rachael Hogg (Chairman) 
Janet Willis (Vice-Chairman) 

 
Pat Bell 

 
Philip Dixon 

 
Brian Rendell 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Roger Bingham, Dave Khan and 
Mark Wilson. 
 
 

Officers 
 

Courage 
Aiguobasinmwin 

Trainee Solicitor 

Una Bell Case Management Team Leader 

David Bradley Principal Housing Standards Officer 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Linda Fisher Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist 
(Monitoring Officer) 

David Sykes Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Kira King Human Resources Officer 

Charles Officer Acting HR Lead Specialist 

Helen Smith Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

 

HR/13 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes 
of the meeting held on 10 September 2019. 
 

HR/14 MINUTES OF APPEALS SUB-COMMITTEE  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Human Resources Sub-Committee 
held on 7 October 2019 be received and the Chairman of the appropriate Sub-Committee 
be authorised to sign as correct record. 
 

HR/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

HR/16 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
RESOLVED – That the items in Part II of the Agenda be dealt with following the exclusion 
of the press and public. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



6 
26.11.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

HR/17 ANNUAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT  
 
The Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources presented the Annual Health and 
Safety Report 2018/19. He highlighted the REACH4Zero Improvement Plan which defined 
a measurable programme of activities which provided direction to actively engage all 
personnel at every level and location. He explained that quarterly reports were presented 
to the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee with the Annual Report being circulated to 
Corporate Management Team, the Joint Consultative Panel and the Health, Safety and 
Wellbeing Committee.  
 
The Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources outlined the targets which had been 
set for 2018/19 and the summary of improvements which had been made to reach the 
targets. He highlighted the Waste Collection Policy, which had been introduced in 
February 2019, and the Streetscene Rounds Risk Assessments which had particularly 
looked at reverse manoeuvres. 
 
The Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources informed Members that in December 
2018 the Council had achieved the bronze level of Better Health at Work Award, which 
demonstrated a commitment to Health and Safety. In addition work had continued to 
reduce the risks, which arose when using contractors, by providing training and 
undertaking site audits. He informed Members that a third party organisation, Tribe Ltd, 
had been brought in to audit Health and Safety for the Council and had undertaken an 
audit of three areas: Streetscene; Grounds Maintenance; and Facilities 
Management/Assets and work was underway to address the recommendations made. He 
highlighted that all employees had been IOSH (Institution of Occupational Safety and 
Health) trained and as part of the Customer Connect transition period all employees would 
receive updates and refreshers on good Health and Safety practice. In addition 
improvements would be made to simplify the current Health and Safety systems. 
 
The Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources went on to outline the accident 
statistics and near miss incidents within the report and highlighted that although there had 
been a significant drop in near miss incidents from 91 in 2017 to 19 in 2018 it was 
possible that this was, in part, due to near misses not being reported and Members were 
informed that work would be undertaken to review and streamline the reporting procedure 
to improve its usage. In concluding his presentation the Director of Strategy, Innovation 
and Resources outlined the future priorities which included further engagement with staff 
and an emphasis on embedding a Health and Safety culture within the Customer Connect 
programme. 
 
The Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources responded to questions raised by 
Members and undertook to provide a written response in relation to the investigation and 
analysis of near miss incidents. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Annual Health and Safety Report 2018/19 be received. 
 

HR/18 PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 
of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated. 
 

Page 6



7 
26.11.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

HR/19 SPECIAL PAID LEAVE APPLICATION 
 
- Paragraph 1, 2 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
 
The Principal Housing Standards Officer presented a report which sought approval for the 
request of two weeks special paid leave for a member of his team. 
 
Members gave consideration to the report and agreed to support the request. 
 
RESOLVED – That the request for two weeks special paid leave be approved. 
 

HR/20 JOINT CONSULTATIVE PANEL 
 
- Paragraph 4 - Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders 
under the authority.  

 
RESOLVED – That the notes of the meeting of the Joint Consultative Panel held on 20 
August 2019 be received. 
 

HR/21 HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELLBEING COMMITTEE 
 
- Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Health, Safety and Wellbeing 
Committee held on 14 August 2019 be received. 
 

HR/22 ORGANISATIONAL ESTABLISHMENT UPDATE 
 
- Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 4 - Information relating to any individual.  
- Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual.  
- Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information)  
- Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated consultations 

or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising between the 
authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office holders under the 
authority.  

 
Acting HR Lead Specialist presented a report which outlined the updated Organisational 
Establishment list following the Customer Connect transformation programme. He 
highlighted the leadership structure which had seen two distinct Director led areas and the 
introduction of new job families. The Acting HR Lead Specialist outlined details of the 
reduction in the Establishment FTE (Full Time Equivalent), the salary budget and 
anticipated savings and advised Members that the report provided the updated 
establishment with the new structures as at 1 January 2020.  
 
The Acting HR Lead Specialist responded to questions raised by Members and the 
Director of Strategy Innovation and Resources informed Members that the Council was in 
a period of transition and there was a forthcoming programme of work which would 
engage Members and external stakeholders throughout the transition. 
 

Page 7



8 
26.11.2019 Human Resources Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED – That  
 
(1)  the changes as detailed in the report and appendices be noted; 
 
(2) the updated Establishment List at Appendix A to the report be received; and  
 
(3) approval be given for the use of the Establishment List in the preparation of the 

2020/21 to 2024/25 salary budget, for consideration at Full Council and a summary 
of the Establishment be included in the budget setting report to enable Council to 
approve the overall staffing requirements. 

 

HR/23 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 3.52 p.m. 

Page 8



South Lakeland District Council 

Human Resources Committee 

Tuesday, 11 February 2020 

Pay Policy Statement 2020/2021 

 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Portfolio:  Cllr Eric Morrell- Customer and Commercial Services and People 

Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  David Sykes – Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Report Author: Charles Officer – Acting HR Lead Specialist 

Wards:  N/A 

Forward Plan: N/A 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

1.0     EXPECTED OUTCOME  

1.1  This report presents the Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 for South Lakeland District 
Council.  This Pay Policy Statement provides transparency with regard to the Council’s 
approach to setting the pay of its employees, detailing in particular the pay of senior 
management. 

 

2.0  RECOMMENDATION  

2.1  It is recommended that the Human Resources Committee agrees the attached 
Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 for recommendation to Full Council for approval.  

 

3.0     BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS  

3.1  Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the ‘power to 
appoint officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the authority thinks fit’.  

3.2 The Localism Act 2011 brought in new provisions with regard to requirements for the 
Council to determine and publish an annual pay policy statement.   The Pay Policy 
Statement requires annual review.    

3.3  South Lakeland District Council is an employer in its own right and has the autonomy 
to make decisions on pay that are appropriate to local circumstances and which deliver 
value for money for local taxpayers.  

3.4  In accordance with Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 South Lakeland District 
Council is required to publish a statement on the Council’s approach to setting the pay 
of its employees, in particular the posts defined as ‘chief officer’ posts.  

3.5  The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the Council’s 
approach to setting the pay and remuneration of its employees by identifying: 

3.5.1 the methods by which salaries of all employees are determined; 

Page 9

Item No.5



3.5.2 the detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff as defined by the 
relevant legislation; and 

3.5.3 the Committee responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement 
are applied consistently throughout the Council and recommending any 
amendments to the full Council   

3.6  There are a number of approved Human Resource policies and procedures that deal 
with pay and remuneration of all employees and this Pay Policy Statement draws the 
information together and has been prepared in accordance with the guidance issued 
by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.  

3.7  Members are requested to agree the Pay Policy Statement for 2020/21 for approval by 
full Council.  The Statement is included in the budget report for Council at its meeting 
on 25 February 2020.  

3.9  The National Living Wage rate will increase from 1 April 2020 to £8.72 per hour from 
£8.21 per hour.  

3.10  The Council currently complies with the requirements to pay the National Living Wage 
and the minimum payment that a staff member will receive is £9.00 per hour with 
exception to apprentices. Apprentice salaries will remain in line with the national 
minimum wage.  

3.11 Currently the National Joint Council pay agreement for 2020 onwards has not been 

finalised. SLDC complies with the collective pay bargaining and it’s outcome and once 

this has been finalised a further report detailing any changes will be provided. It is 

assumed that the pay award will be in line with the 2018 to 2020 pay award of 2%. 

 

4.0  CONSULTATION  

4.1  The Corporate Management Team and Unions have been given the opportunity to 
comment on the Pay Policy Statement.  

 

5.0  ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

5.1  No alternative options are considered for the Pay Policy Statement 2020/21 as 
presented.  

   

6.0  LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES  

6.1  A clear policy ensures that the Council continues to work towards the Council Plan by 
ensuring excellence and openness.  

 

7.0  IMPLICATIONS  

7.1  Financial and Resources  

7.1.1  Further details will be known once the National Joint Council pay agreement for 2020 
onwards has been finalised.  

 

7.2  Human Resources  

7.2.1  Locally agreed policies and procedures are incorporated into the Terms and Conditions 
of Employment for all employees.  Full consultation with the recognised Unions will 
take place in line with statutory requirements.  

Page 10



  

7.3  Legal  

There are no legal implications other than the employment issues that are dealt with in 
the body of this report and within the Human Resources section.  

 

7.4    Social, Economic and Environmental  

7.4.1  A sustainability impact assessment has not been carried out.   

7.4.2  This report does not have any significant environmental effects. The Social, Economic 
impacts of the adoption of the new pay spine have been previously assessed as 
positive when considered by the Human Resources Committee. 

 

7.5  Equality and Diversity  

7.5.1.   An equality and diversity impact assessment has not been carried out as there are a 
number of approved Human Resource policies and procedures that deal with pay and 
remuneration of all employees and this Pay Policy Statement draws the information 
together.  However, diversity runs through all aspects of the Council’s Human 
Resources Policies and Procedures and managing this is integral within all our Policies 
and Procedures, thus ensuring compliance with legislative requirements.  

7.5.2  The Equalities and Diversity Impact assessment of the current pay spine was 
considered by the Human Resources Committee and assessed positive impacts on 
employment, income and poverty.  

 

7.6      Risk  

Risk  Consequence  Controls required  

The Pay Policy Statement 

does not contain the 

information required by 

legislation  

The Council will not adhere 

to legislation  

Ensure the Pay Policy 

Statement contains the 

information required by 

legislation  

The Pay Policy Statement 

is not approved by Council  

The Council will not adhere 

to legislation  

Ensure the Pay Policy 

Statement is approved by 

Council by 31 March 2020  

  

CONTACT OFFICERS  

Charles Officer – Acting HR Lead Specialist charles.officer@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT   

Appendix No.    

1  Pay Policy Statement 2019/20 

2 SCP and Grade from 1 April 2019 

  

Page 11

mailto:charles.officer@southlakeland.gov.uk


BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE  

Human Resources Committee Report on National Pay Agreement dated 11 December 2018 

Full Council Report on the Senior Management Restructure dated 10 October 2018  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 8/1/20 

Section 151 Officer 8/1/20 

Monitoring Officer 8/1/20 

CMT TBA 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 18/1/19 

Human Resources Lead Specialist 18/1/19 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman 27/1/19 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 27/1/19 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 12



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

Appendix 1  

 
  

  

PAY POLICY STATEMENT 2020/21 
  

  

1.0  INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE  

  

Under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has the “power to appoint 

officers on such reasonable terms and conditions as the Authority thinks fit”. This Pay Policy 

Statement sets out the Council’s approach to pay policy in accordance with the requirements of 

Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011.    

 

The purpose of the statement is to provide transparency with regard to the Council’s approach 

to setting the pay of its employees by identifying:-  

  

• The methods by which salaries of all employees are determined;  

• The detail and level of remuneration of its most senior staff i.e. ‘chief officers’, as defined 

by the relevant legislation;  

• The detail and level of remuneration of the senior managers;  

• The Committee responsible for ensuring the provisions set out in this statement are 

applied consistently throughout the Council and recommending any amendments to the 

full Council.  

 

 

2.0  LEGISLATION RELEVANT TO PAY AND REMUNERATION  

  

In determining the pay and remuneration of all of its employees, the Council will comply with 

all relevant employment legislation.  This includes legislation such as the Equality Act 2010, 

Part Time Employment (Prevention of Less Favourable Treatment) Regulations 2000, the 

Agency Workers Regulations 2010 and where relevant, the Transfer of Undertakings 

(Protection of Earnings) Regulations.    

 
The Council ensures there is no pay discrimination within its pay structures and that all pay 

differentials can be objectively justified.   

  

3.0  SCOPE OF THE POLICY  

  

Legislation requires Pay Policy Statements to provide information relevant to ‘chief officer’ 

posts as defined in the Localism Act 2011.  In South Lakeland District Council the posts 

classified as chief officers are the Chief Executive, Directors, Operational Leads and Lead 

Specialists.    

  

This Pay Policy Statement includes Information on the Leadership Team which consists of the 

Chief Executive, Directors, Lead Specialists and Operational Leads as per the current 

Leadership Team structure (see table for link to Appendix A1).  

 

 

Page 13



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

4.0  ACCOUNTABILITY AND DECISION MAKING  

  

In accordance with Part 3 of the Constitution of the Council titled Responsibility for Council 

Functions (see table for link to Appendix B), the Human Resources Committee is responsible 

for decision making and if appropriate, proposing to Council changes in relation to recruitment, 

terms and conditions and severance arrangements in relation to employees of the Council.    

  

5.0  PAY STRUCTURE  

  

 5.1  Chief Executive and Directors  

The Chief Executive’s pay scale is considered and reviewed each time the post becomes 

vacant or at the request of the post holder. The post holder is Lawrence Conway.  The salary 

paid to the Chief Executive is determined locally by the Council.  A review of the Chief 

Executive’s salary was undertaken by bench marking the salaries of other district Councils 

regionally and nationally and the current pay scale was approved by the Human Resources 

Committee on 18 August 2010.   

  

The Directors’ pay scales are reviewed each time there is a proposed senior management 

restructure or at the request of the post holder/s.  The salary paid to Directors is determined 

locally by the Council. There are two post holder and they are David Sykes, Director of 

Strategy, Innovation and Resources and Simon Rowley, Director of Customer and 

Commercial Services.  A formal review of the existing Directors salaries was last undertaken 

in 2005 which involved a bench marking exercise conducted by the North West Employers 

Organisation.  A further salary bench marking exercise was carried out in September 2018 as 

part of the proposed senior management restructure which was implemented on 1 April 2019.    

  

There are no recommendations for changes to the pay scale for the Chief Executive or 

Directors.  

  

 5.2  Other Employees   

The Council uses the nationally negotiated pay spines as the basis for its local pay structure, 

which determines the salaries of its workforce excluding Chief Executive and Directors, 

together with the use of locally determined rates (see table for link to Appendix C).    

  

The Council adopts the national pay bargaining arrangements in respect of the establishment 

and revision of the national pay spine.   

  

In determining its grading structure and setting remuneration levels for any posts which fall 

outside its scope, the Council takes account of the need to ensure value for money in respect 

of the use of public expenditure, balanced against the need to recruit and retain employees 

who are able to meet the requirements of providing high quality services to the community, 

delivered effectively and efficiently and at times at which those services are required.    

  

In December 2018, the Human Resources Committee and Full Council considered the 

implementation of the National Joint Council pay agreement for 2018-20, and approved the 

introduction of a new pay spine on 1st April 2019. 

 

Currently the National Joint Council pay agreement for 2020 onwards has not been finalised. 

Once this has been finalised an update detailing any changes will be provided to the 

appropriate committee. 

  

 5.3  Bonus Payments  

The Council does not operate a bonus scheme for any employee.  

  

Page 14



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

 5.4  Other Pay Related Allowances  

All other pay related allowances are the subject of either nationally or locally negotiated rates, 

having been determined from time to time in accordance with collective bargaining machinery.    

  

 5.5  New Appointments  

New appointments will normally be made at the minimum of the relevant pay scale for the 

grade, although this can be varied where necessary to secure the best candidate.  Where the 

appointment salary is above the minimum point of the pay scale and is not affected by other 

Council policies, for example promotion, redeployment or flexible retirement, this is approved 

in accordance with section 9.3.2 of the Recruitment and Selection Policy (see table for link to 

Appendix D).  

  

 5.6  Market Supplements  

From time to time it may be necessary to take account of the external pay levels in the labour 

market in order to attract and retain employees with particular experience, skills and capacity.  

Where necessary, the Council will ensure the requirement for such is objectively justified by 

reference to clear and transparent evidence of relevant market comparators, using data 

sources available from within the local government sector and outside, as appropriate.   

 

 5.7  Additional Remuneration  

To meet operational requirements it may be necessary for an individual to temporarily take on 

additional duties to their identified role. The Council’s arrangements for authorising any 

additional remuneration relating to temporary additional duties are set out in the Acting Up 

Guidelines (see table for link to Appendix E).  Individuals may also receive additional 

remuneration as detailed in the Exceptional Effort/Merit/Qualification Success Guidelines. 

(see table for link to Appendix F).  

  

6.0       LEADERSHIP RECRUITMENT  

  

The Council’s procedures with regard to recruitment of chief officers follows the Officer  

Employment Procedure Rules in Part 4 of the Constitution (see table for link to Appendix G).   

 

For the expressed purposes of recruiting to the Leadership structure, Council approved a 

delegation of authority to the Head of Paid Service to take the necessary steps to appoint to 

those roles with notification of those appointments being reported to a future Council meeting.  

  

When recruiting to all posts the Council will take full and proper account of all provisions of 

relevant employment law and its own Equality and Diversity, Recruitment & Selection and 

Redeployment Policies as approved by the Human Resources Committee.  

  

The determination of the remuneration to be offered to any newly appointed chief officer will 

be in accordance with the pay structure and relevant policies in place at the time of 

recruitment.    

  

Where the Council is unable to recruit chief officers, or there is a need for interim support to 

provide cover for a substantive Leadership post the Council will, where necessary, will 

consider engaging individuals under a ‘contract for service’.  These will be sourced through a 

relevant procurement process ensuring the Council is able to demonstrate the maximum value 

for money benefits from competition in securing the relevant service.  In assessing such, it 

should be noted that in respect of such engagements the Council is not required to make 

either pension or national insurance contributions for such individuals.  The Council currently 

does not have any senior officers engaged under such arrangements.  

 

 

 

Page 15



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

 

 

  

7.0  SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION  

  

The Leadership posts are set out below with details of their basic salary as at 1 January 2020. 

Please note that further details will be provided once the National Joint Council pay agreement 

has been confirmed and agreed. The relevant pay scale is reviewed and changes are 

implemented on 1 April each year:  

  

Chief Executive     

The salary falls within a range of five incremental points between £104,572, rising to a 

maximum of £111,421. The salary package of the post as at 1 January 2020 is £112,384 

(including car user allowance).  

 

The Chief Executives terms and conditions of service are determined by the Joint Negotiating 

Committee (JNC) for Local Authority Chief Executives.    
  

Directors  

The salary package of the existing posts designated as Director is a spot salary as approved 

by Council in October 2018. The salary package of the post as at 1 January 2020 is £79,774 

(including car user allowance).  

 

The Directors terms and conditions of service are determined by the Joint Negotiating 

Committee (JNC) for Chief Officers.  

  

Operational Leads and Lead Specialists 

 

From April 1st 2019, these roles were established through the senior management restructure 

and together with the Chief Executive and the Directors form the Leadership Team of the 

Council. 

 

The salaries for these roles fall within a grades M,N and O of the Council Pay Grades. From 

1 January 2020: 

 

Grade and number of 

incremental points 

From To 

Grade M – 4 incremental points £43,662 £46,572 

Grade N – 4 incremental points £47,546 £50,494 

Grade O – 4 incremental points £51,462 £54,669 

 

The Operational Leads and Lead Specialists terms and conditions of service are determined 

by the National Joint Council (NJC) for Local Government Services as per all employees under 

Chief Officer level.  The salary level forms part of the Pay and Grading Framework. 

  

8.0  STATUTORY OFFICER REMUNERATION  

  

Any statutory function performed by Directors is inclusive in their basic salary. 

 

In addition to basic salary, the following posts receive additional pay as set out below:  

  

Returning Officer  

The role of Returning Officer currently designated to Simon McVey, Operational Lead Support 

Services. 

  

Page 16



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

In accordance with the national agreement the Returning Officer is entitled to receive and 

retain the personal fees arising from performing the duties of Returning Officer, Acting 

Returning Officer, Deputy Returning Officer or Deputy Acting Returning Officer and similar 

position which he or she performs subject to the payment of pension contributions thereon, 

where appropriate.  

  

In respect of District and Parish Council elections an allowance of £3609.48 per annum was 

paid. This payment increased in line with the nationally agreed pay award. 

 

Allowance paid: 

 

From 1 April 2020 the allowance of £3609.48 will no longer be paid but will change to an 

additional allowance of 10% of standard salary which will be paid to the Operational Lead 

Support Services. This will bring the allowance in line with the Section 151 Officer and 

Monitoring Officer. 

 

An additional allowance of 5% of annual salary will be paid to the Deputy Returning Officer. 

  

Fees for election duties for other elections (County Council, National and European Elections, 

etc.) are paid as an additional sum at the rate prescribed by government as and when they 

arise, they are distinct from the process for the determination of pay for Chief Officers.   

  

Monitoring Officer  

The role of Monitoring Officer currently designated to Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and 

Democracy Lead Specialist. 

  

 Allowance Paid:    

 

An additional allowance of 10% of annual salary will be paid to the Legal, Governance and 

Democracy Lead Specialist.  

 

An additional allowance of 5% of annual salary will be paid to the Deputy Monitoring Officer. 

  

Section 151 Officer  

The role of Section 151 Officer is currently designated to Helen Smith, Finance Lead 

Specialist.  

  

Allowance Paid:  

 

An additional allowance of 10% of annual salary will be paid to the Finance Lead Specialist. 

 

An additional allowance of 5% of annual salary will be paid to the Deputy Section 151 Officer. 

 

 

9.0  PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS   

  

Subject to qualifying conditions, employees have a right to belong to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme. The Council is required to make a contribution to the scheme representing 

a percentage of the pensionable remuneration due under the contract of employment of that 

employee.  The rate of contribution is set by Actuaries advising the Cumbria Pension Fund 

and reviewed on a triennial basis in order to ensure the scheme is appropriately funded.  The 

agreed rate to be used in the financial year 2020/21 is 20.1%.  

  

The employee contribution rates effective from 1 April 2019 are based on actual pensionable 

pay as detailed in the table below.    

Page 17



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Actual Pensionable Pay  

£  

Employee  Contribution 

Rate  

Up to 14,400 5.5%  

14,401 - 22,500 5.8%  

22,501 - 36,500 6.5%  

36,501 - 46,200 6.8%  

46,201 - 64,600 8.5%  

 64,601 – 91,500 9.9%  

 91,501 – 107,700 10.5%  

 107.701 – 161,500 11.4%  

More than  161,501 12.5%  

  

  

10.0  PAYMENTS ON TERMINATION  

  

The Councils approach to statutory and discretionary payments on termination of employment 

of chief officers, prior to reaching normal retirement age, is set out within the Early Retirement 

Policy (see table for link to appendix H) in accordance with Regulations 5 and 6 of the Local 

Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) Regulations 

2006.   

  

This policy is applied equally to all employees regardless of seniority.  

  

Should there be a need to consider a termination which does not fall within the above policy 

this would be subject to a formal decision made by the Human Resources Committee.    

 

It is noted that the Government is proposing to introduce a cap on public sector exit payments 

of £95,000 (including the capital cost of unreduced pension benefits for staff aged 55 or above). 

The Council’s policies will incorporate any changes to legislation. 

 

11.0  PAY ANALYSIS  

  

Calculations in this document are taken using the January payroll data and include all taxable 

bonuses, allowances and variable pay elements payable.  This figure excludes pension 

benefits.  

  

Median Salary  

This calculation is made including all staff within the paid services of the Council, including the 
Chief Executive.  The median salary using the December 2019 payroll was £22,911. This is 
based on a staffing number of 392 and total remuneration of £7,588,334 (based on all posts 
at their full-time equivalent rate).  

Page 18



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

  

Lowest paid Employees  

The lowest paid persons employed under a contract of employment with the Council, are 

employed on full time (37 hours) equivalent salaries in accordance with the minimum spinal 

column point currently in use within the Council’s grading structure (see table for link to 

Appendix C).  Using the December 2019 payroll data, the lowest paid employee was on a 

salary of £17,364 per annum (Full Time Equivalent).    

  

The exception to the above are apprentices where they are paid a rate according to their age 

for the 2 years duration of the apprenticeship.  The rates from April 2020 are; under age 18 

£4.55 per hour; age 18 to 20 £6.45 per hour, age 21 to 24 £8.20 per hour and 25 and over 

£8.72.  This is above the national apprenticeship rate of pay for year one which is those under 

age 19 and in the first year of apprenticeship receive £4.15 per hour.   

  

Pay Multiple  

 

The Council uses an established process of defining roles, determining job size and salary 

levels. This process determines the relationship between the rate of pay for the lowest paid 

and senior manager post, including chief officers, described as the pay multiple. The Chief 

Executive’s remuneration (including essential car user allowance) as at January 2020 was 

£112,384 per annum.  This provides a ratio of approximately 1:5 when compared with the 

median salary of £22,911 (actual ratio of 1:4.91).  

 

This is currently within the limits recommended by The Hutton Review of Fair Pay in the Public 

Sector (2010) and will be monitored and recorded annually. 

  

12.0  TRADE UNION FACILITY TIME  

  

South Lakeland District Council recognise Unison and GMB trade unions for negotiation and 

consultation purposes and has a Trade Union Time Off & Facilities Policy (see table for link to 

Appendix J) which outlines guidance for allowing time off to undertake trade union activities.  

  

There are 7 employees who are union representatives.  There is currently no union 

representative who devotes at least 50% of their time to union activity.  

  

So far during the financial year 2019/20 approximately 1.5 days per month paid time off has 

been given to trade union representatives.  

  

The average salary at the Council is £19,358 (note this is different to the median salary).  Based 

on the average salary the estimate of spending on unions as a percentage of the total pay bill 

is 0.08%. 

  

The median salary at the Council is £22,911.  Based on the median salary the estimate of 

spending on unions as a percentage of the total pay bill is 0.1%. 

 

  

13.0  RE-EMPLOYMENT/RE-ENGAGEMENT OF FORMER CHIEF OFFICERS   

  

The authority does not re-employ or engage former chief officers under a contract for service.  

  

14.0  PUBLICATION OF THE PAY POLICY STATEMENT  

  

Upon approval by full Council, this statement will be published on the Councils Website and 

intranet.    

  

Page 19



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

For posts where the full time equivalent salary is at least £50,000, the Council’s Annual  

Statement of Accounts will include a note setting out the total amount of:-  

• salary, fees or allowances paid to or receivable by the person in the current and 

previous year;  

• any sums payable by way of expenses allowance that are chargeable to UK income 

tax;  

• any compensation for loss of employment and any other payments connected with 

termination;   

• any benefits received that do not fall within the above.  

  

15.0  REVIEW  

  

Once approved by Council, this policy statement will come into immediate effect and 

will be subject to review on a minimum of an annual basis, the policy for the next 

financial year being approved by 31 March each year.   

  

Amendments may need to be made throughout the relevant period and proposed 

amendments will be reported to the Human Resources Committee for recommendation 

to full Council.   

Page 20



Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

APPENDICES  

Appendices are located on the SLDC internet.  Please refer to the following URL for access 

to the following documents: (Please copy and paste link into the browser to view the 

document)  

Appe

ndix  

Document Type  SLDC Internet link  

A  

1. Leadership Structure 

 

Appendix A1:  

 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6917/south-lakeland-

district-council-leadership-structure.pdf 

 

B  

Responsibility for  

Council Functions – Part 
3 SLDC  
Constitution   

Appendix B:  Responsibility for Functions 

 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6952/south-

lakeland-district-council-constitution-november-2019.pdf  

C  

1.SLDC Pay and  

Grading Structure 1  

April 2019 

  

2.SLDC Pay and  

Grading Structure 1  

April 2020  

Appendix C1:  

http://sharepoint/sites/hr/Shared%20Documents/Payscale%202

019.pdf 

 

 

Appendix C2: Awaiting details 

D  

Recruitment &  

Selection Policy - Section 

10.3  

Appendix D: Recruitment and Selection Policy  

 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6235/recruitment_and_ 

selection-002.pdf 

 

E  Acting Up Guidelines  

Appendix E: Acting Up Guidelines  

 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6232/acting_up_ 

guidelines.pdf 

 

F  

Exceptional  

Effort/Merit/Qualification 

success Guidelines  

Appendix F: Exceptional Effort Merit Payments 
 
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6234/ 
exceptional-effort-merit-payments-guidelines.pdf 
 

G  

Officer Employment  

Procedure Rules - Part 
4 SLDC  
Constitution  

Appendix G: Officer Employment Procedure Rules, part 4 SLDC 
Constitution   
 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6952/south-lakeland-

district-council-constitution-november-2019.pdf  

H  Early Retirement Policy  

Appendix H: Early Retirement Policy  

 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6233/ 

earlyretirement.pdf 

I  Redundancy Policy  

Appendix I: Redundancy Policy 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6236/redundancy-

policy.pdf 

 

Page 21

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6917/south-lakeland-district-council-leadership-structure.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6917/south-lakeland-district-council-leadership-structure.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6952/south-lakeland-district-council-constitution-november-2019.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6952/south-lakeland-district-council-constitution-november-2019.pdf
http://sharepoint/sites/hr/Shared%20Documents/Payscale%202019.pdf
http://sharepoint/sites/hr/Shared%20Documents/Payscale%202019.pdf
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33636
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6235/recruitment_and_selection-002.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6235/recruitment_and_selection-002.pdf
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33637
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6232/acting_up_guidelines.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6232/acting_up_guidelines.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6234/exceptional-effort-merit-payments-guidelines.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6234/exceptional-effort-merit-payments-guidelines.pdf
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=33672
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6952/south-lakeland-district-council-constitution-november-2019.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6952/south-lakeland-district-council-constitution-november-2019.pdf
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46668
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46668
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6233/earlyretirement.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6233/earlyretirement.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6236/redundancy-policy.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6236/redundancy-policy.pdf


Author: C Officer  Version 1.0  January 2020 

  

J  

  

Trade Union Time  

Off & Facilities  

Policy  

Appendix J: Trade Union Time Off and Facilities  

Policy /  

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6237/2014-

tradeuniontimeoff.pdf  

  

Page 22

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/EasySiteWeb/GatewayLink.aspx?alId=46670
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6237/2014-tradeuniontimeoff.pdf
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/media/6237/2014-tradeuniontimeoff.pdf


SCP and Grades from 1 April 2019 

New SCP New Salary
New Hourly 

Rate

 New 

SCP

60 61,328 31.78793 Q 60

59 60,495 31.35616 841 59

58 59,663 30.92492 58

57 58,831 30.49367 57

56 57,997 30.06138 P 56

55 57,168 29.63169 815 55

54 56,335 29.19993 840 54

53 55,503 28.76868 53

52 54,669 28.33639 O 52

51 53,586 27.77505 750 51

50 52,507 27.21577 814 50

49 51,462 26.67412 49

48 50,494 26.17238 N 48

47 49,529 25.67220 710 47

46 48,530 25.15439 749 46

45 47,546 24.64435 45

44 46,572 24.13950 M 44

43 45,591 23.63103 679 43

42 44,632 23.13395 709 42

41 43,662 22.63117 41

40 42,683 22.12373 L 40

39 41,675 21.60126 637 39

38 40,760 21.12699 678 38

37 39,782 20.62007 37

36 38,813 20.11781 K 36

35 37,849 19.61814 595 35

34 36,876 19.11381 636 34

33 35,934 18.62555 J 33

32 34,788 18.03154 544 32

31 33,799 17.51892 594 31

30 32,878 17.04154 30

29 32,029 16.60148 I 29

28 31,371 16.26042 511 28

27 30,507 15.81259 543 27

26 29,636 15.36113 H 26

25 28,785 14.92003 478 25

24 27,905 14.46390 510 24

23 26,999 13.99430 23

22 26,317 13.64080 G 22

21 25,801 13.37334 21

20 25,295 13.11107 443 20

19 24,799 12.85398 477 19

18 24,313 12.60207 18

17 23,836 12.35483 17

16 23,369 12.11277 F 16

15 22,911 11.87538 401 15

14 22,462 11.64265 442 14

13 22,021 11.41407 13

12 21,589 11.19015 E 12

11 21,166 10.97090 358 11

10 20,751 10.75579 400 10

9 20,344 10.54484 9

8 19,945 10.33802 8

7 19,554 10.13536 D 7

6 19,171 9.93684 316 6

5 18,795 9.74195 5

4 18,426 9.55068 C 4

3 18,065 9.36357 243 3

2 17,711 9.18008 2

1 17,364 9.00022 1

Grades

Appendix 2

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Item No.6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 29

Item No.7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Pay Policy Statement 2020/2021
	Pay Policy Statement 2020/2021  - Appendix 1
	SCP and Grade from 1 April 2019 - Appendix 2

	6 Joint Consultative Panel
	7 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee
	14-01-20 Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee Meeting Minutes


